

(Reprinted with amendments adopted on May 23, 2013)

SECOND REPRINT

A.B. 336

ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 336—ASSEMBLYWOMAN KIRKPATRICK

MARCH 18, 2013

Referred to Committee on Transportation

SUMMARY—Provides for an extended term of vehicle registration for certain trailers. (BDR 43-240)

FISCAL NOTE: Effect on Local Government: No.  
Effect on the State: Yes.

~

EXPLANATION – Matter in *bolded italics* is new; matter between brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

AN ACT relating to vehicle registration; authorizing the registration of certain trailers for a 3-year period in lieu of a 12-month period; requiring a registrant who elects to register a trailer for the longer period to pay fees commensurate with that longer period; authorizing the registration of certain commercial trailers and semitrailers for as long as the trailer is owned by the person who obtained the registration; providing for a one-time imposition of a flat governmental services tax on commercial trailers registered for as long as the trailer is owned by the person who obtained the registration; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

**Legislative Counsel's Digest:**

1 Existing law requires the annual registration of trailers and semitrailers that are  
2 to be operated on the highways of this State and the imposition of a governmental  
3 services tax. (NRS 371.030, 482.205, 482.206) **Section 1.4** of this bill allows a  
4 person who owns a trailer to instead elect to register the trailer for a period of 3  
5 years. **Section 1.4** also requires a person who registers a trailer for a 3-year period  
6 to pay upon registration all applicable fees and taxes which the person would pay if  
7 the trailer was registered for 1 year and then renewed for 2 consecutive years,  
8 including, without limitation, governmental services taxes, registration fees, license  
9 plate fees and additional fees, if applicable, for personalized prestige license plates  
10 and special license plates.  
11 **Sections 2, 3, 34.5 and 36** of this bill authorize the owners of certain  
12 commercial trailers and semitrailers to pay a flat registration fee of \$24 and the  
13 imposition of the governmental services tax in the amount of \$86 for a registration  
14 that is valid for as long as the person owns the trailer. **Section 2** provides that such  
15 a registration is nontransferable if the person transfers ownership of the trailer, and  
16 is valid until the owner either transfers ownership of the trailer or cancels the



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

17 registration of the trailer and surrenders the license plates to the Department of  
18 Motor Vehicles. **Section 36** provides that the governmental services tax is imposed  
19 only when the trailer is registered and is nonrefundable. **Section 4.5** of this bill  
20 provides that the Department shall not, for a trailer being registered in this manner,  
21 issue any of the various special license plates offered for other vehicles.

22 **Sections 2-4, 5 and 35** of this bill make conforming changes to provisions  
23 concerning the transfer of registration, the imposition of the governmental services  
24 tax, renewal stickers, the replacement of license plates or decals that are lost,  
25 mutilated or illegible, and the reporting of stolen motor vehicles, trailers or  
26 semitrailers. (NRS 482.206, 482.260, 482.2705, 482.285, 482.520) **Sections 6-34.1**  
27 of this bill make conforming changes to provisions authorizing the issuance of  
28 special license plates which are available for certain trailers and semitrailers.  
29 **Sections 36-38** of this bill make conforming changes to provisions concerning the  
30 imposition of the governmental services tax.

---

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN  
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

1 **Section 1.** Chapter 482 of NRS is hereby amended by adding  
2 thereto the provisions set forth as sections 1.2 and 1.4 of this act.

3 **Sec. 1.2.** *“Full trailer” means any commercial vehicle*  
4 *without motive power supported by front and rear axles and pulled*  
5 *by a drawbar.*

6 **Sec. 1.4. 1.** *A trailer may be registered for a 3-year period*  
7 *as provided in this section.*

8 **2.** *A person who registers a trailer for a 3-year period must*  
9 *pay upon registration all fees and taxes that would be due during*  
10 *the 3-year period if he or she registered the trailer for 1 year and*  
11 *renewed that registration for 2 consecutive years immediately*  
12 *thereafter, including, without limitation:*

13 *(a) Registration fees pursuant to NRS 482.480 and 482.483.*

14 *(b) A fee for each license plate issued pursuant to*  
15 *NRS 482.268.*

16 *(c) Fees for the initial issuance and renewal of a special*  
17 *license plate pursuant to NRS 482.265, if applicable.*

18 *(d) Fees for the initial issuance and renewal of a personalized*  
19 *prestige license plate pursuant to NRS 482.367, if applicable.*

20 *(e) Additional fees for the initial issuance and renewal of a*  
21 *special license plate issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 to 482.3823,*  
22 *inclusive, which are imposed to generate financial support for a*  
23 *particular cause or charitable organization, if applicable.*

24 *(f) Governmental services taxes imposed pursuant to chapter*  
25 *371 of NRS, as provided in NRS 482.260.*

26 *(g) The applicable taxes imposed pursuant to chapters 372,*  
27 *374, 377 and 377A of NRS.*



1       **3. As used in this section, the term “trailer” does not include**  
2 **a full trailer or semitrailer that is registered pursuant to subsection**  
3 **3 of NRS 482.483.**

4       **Sec. 1.5.** NRS 482.010 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
5       482.010 As used in this chapter, unless the context otherwise  
6 requires, the words and terms defined in NRS 482.0105 to 482.137,  
7 inclusive, **and section 1.2 of this act** have the meanings ascribed to  
8 them in those sections.

9       **Sec. 2.** NRS 482.206 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
10       482.206 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section ~~†~~  
11 **and section 1.4 of this act**, every motor vehicle, except for a motor  
12 vehicle that is registered pursuant to the provisions of NRS 706.801  
13 to 706.861, inclusive, **and except for a full trailer or semitrailer**  
14 **that is registered pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 482.483**, must  
15 be registered for a period of 12 consecutive months beginning the  
16 day after the first registration by the owner in this State.

17       2. ~~†Every†~~ **Except as otherwise provided in subsection 7 and**  
18 **section 1.4 of this act**, every vehicle registered by an agent of the  
19 Department or a registered dealer must be registered for 12  
20 consecutive months beginning the first day of the month after the  
21 first registration by the owner in this State.

22       3. ~~†A†~~ **Except as otherwise provided in subsection 7 and**  
23 **section 1.4 of this act**, a vehicle which must be registered through  
24 the Motor Carrier Division of the Department, or a motor vehicle  
25 which has a declared gross weight in excess of 26,000 pounds, must  
26 be registered for a period of 12 consecutive months beginning on the  
27 date established by the Department by regulation.

28       4. Upon the application of the owner of a fleet of vehicles, the  
29 Director may permit the owner to register the fleet on the basis of a  
30 calendar year.

31       5. ~~†When†~~ **Except as otherwise provided in subsections 6 and**  
32 **7, when** the registration of any vehicle is transferred pursuant to  
33 NRS 482.399, the expiration date of each regular license plate,  
34 special license plate or substitute decal must, at the time of the  
35 transfer of registration, be advanced for a period of 12 consecutive  
36 months beginning:

37       (a) The first day of the month after the transfer, if the vehicle is  
38 transferred by an agent of the Department; or

39       (b) The day after the transfer in all other cases,  
40       ➔ and a credit on the portion of the fee for registration and the  
41 governmental services tax attributable to the remainder of  
42 the current period of registration must be allowed pursuant to the  
43 applicable provisions of NRS 482.399.

44       **6. When the registration of any trailer that is registered for a**  
45 **3-year period pursuant to section 1.4 of this act is transferred**



1 *pursuant to NRS 482.399, the expiration date of each license plate*  
2 *or substitute decal must, at the time of the transfer of the*  
3 *registration, be advanced, if applicable pursuant to section 1.4 of*  
4 *this act, for a period of 3 consecutive years beginning:*

5 *(a) The first day of the month after the transfer, if the trailer is*  
6 *transferred by an agent of the Department; or*

7 *(b) The day after the transfer in all other cases,*

8 *↪ and a credit on the portion of the fee for registration and*  
9 *the governmental services tax attributable to the remainder of the*  
10 *current period of registration must be allowed pursuant to the*  
11 *applicable provisions of NRS 482.399.*

12 *7. A full trailer or semitrailer that is registered pursuant to*  
13 *subsection 3 of NRS 482.483 is registered until the date the owner*  
14 *of the full trailer or semitrailer:*

15 *(a) Transfers the ownership of the full trailer or semitrailer; or*

16 *(b) Cancels the registration of the full trailer or semitrailer*  
17 *and surrenders the license plates to the Department.*

18 **Sec. 3.** NRS 482.260 is hereby amended to read as follows:

19 482.260 1. When registering a vehicle, the Department and  
20 its agents or a registered dealer shall:

21 (a) Collect the fees for license plates and registration as  
22 provided for in this chapter.

23 (b) Collect the governmental services tax on the vehicle, as  
24 agent for the State and for the county where the applicant intends to  
25 base the vehicle for the period of registration, unless the vehicle is  
26 deemed to have no base.

27 (c) Collect the applicable taxes imposed pursuant to chapters  
28 372, 374, 377 and 377A of NRS.

29 (d) Issue a certificate of registration.

30 (e) If the registration is performed by the Department, issue the  
31 regular license plate or plates.

32 (f) If the registration is performed by a registered dealer, provide  
33 information to the owner regarding the manner in which the regular  
34 license plate or plates will be made available to the owner.

35 2. Upon proof of ownership satisfactory to the Director, the  
36 Director shall cause to be issued a certificate of title as provided in  
37 this chapter.

38 3. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 371.070 ~~H~~ *and*  
39 *subsections 6 and 7*, every vehicle being registered for the first time  
40 in Nevada must be taxed for the purposes of the governmental  
41 services tax for a 12-month period.

42 4. The Department shall deduct and withhold 2 percent of the  
43 taxes collected pursuant to paragraph (c) of subsection 1 and remit  
44 the remainder to the Department of Taxation.



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 5. A registered dealer shall forward all fees and taxes collected  
2 for the registration of vehicles to the Department.

3 **6. A trailer being registered pursuant to section 1.4 of this act**  
4 **must be taxed for the purposes of the governmental services tax**  
5 **for a 3-year period.**

6 **7. A full trailer or semitrailer being registered pursuant to**  
7 **subsection 3 of NRS 482.483 must be taxed for the purposes of the**  
8 **governmental services tax in the amount of \$86. The**  
9 **governmental services tax paid pursuant to this subsection is**  
10 **nontransferable and nonrefundable.**

11 **Sec. 4.** NRS 482.2705 is hereby amended to read as follows:

12 482.2705 1. The Director shall order the preparation of  
13 vehicle license plates for passenger cars and trucks in the same  
14 manner as is provided for motor vehicles generally in NRS 482.270.

15 2. Except as otherwise provided by specific statute, the  
16 Director shall determine the combinations of letters and numbers  
17 which constitute the designations for license plates assigned to  
18 passenger cars and trucks.

19 3. Any license plate issued for a passenger car or truck before  
20 January 1, 1982, bearing a designation which is not in conformance  
21 with the system described in subsection 2 is valid during the period  
22 for which the plate was originally issued as well as during any  
23 ~~annual~~ extensions by stickers.

24 **Sec. 4.5.** NRS 482.274 is hereby amended to read as follows:

25 482.274 1. The Director shall order the preparation of vehicle  
26 license plates for trailers in the same manner provided for motor  
27 vehicles in NRS 482.270 ~~H~~, **except that a vehicle license plate**  
28 **prepared for a full trailer or semitrailer that is registered pursuant**  
29 **to subsection 3 of NRS 482.483 is not required to have displayed**  
30 **upon it the month and year the registration expires.**

31 2. The Director shall order preparation of two sizes of vehicle  
32 license plates for trailers. The smaller plates may be used for trailers  
33 with a gross vehicle weight of less than 1,000 pounds.

34 3. The Director shall determine the registration numbers  
35 assigned to trailers.

36 4. Any license plates issued for a trailer before July 1, 1975,  
37 bearing a different designation from that provided for in this section,  
38 are valid during the period for which such plates were issued.

39 **5. The Department shall not issue for a full trailer or**  
40 **semitrailer that is registered pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS**  
41 **482.483 a special license plate available pursuant to NRS**  
42 **482.3667 to 482.3823, inclusive.**

43 **Sec. 5.** NRS 482.285 is hereby amended to read as follows:

44 482.285 1. If any certificate of registration or certificate of  
45 title is lost, mutilated or illegible, the person to whom it was issued



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 shall immediately make application for and obtain a duplicate or  
2 substitute therefor upon furnishing information satisfactory to the  
3 Department and upon payment of the required fees.

4 2. If any license plate or plates or any decal is lost, mutilated or  
5 illegible, the person to whom it was issued shall immediately make  
6 application for and obtain:

- 7 (a) A duplicate number plate or a substitute number plate;
- 8 (b) A substitute decal; or
- 9 (c) A combination of both (a) and (b),

10 ↪ as appropriate, upon furnishing information satisfactory to the  
11 Department and payment of the fees required by NRS 482.500.

12 3. If any license plate or plates or any decal is stolen, the  
13 person to whom it was issued shall immediately make application  
14 for and obtain:

- 15 (a) A substitute number plate;
- 16 (b) A substitute decal; or
- 17 (c) A combination of both (a) and (b),

18 ↪ as appropriate, upon furnishing information satisfactory to the  
19 Department and payment of the fees required by NRS 482.500.

20 4. The Department shall issue duplicate number plates or  
21 substitute number plates and, if applicable, a substitute decal, if the  
22 applicant:

23 (a) Returns the mutilated or illegible plates to the Department or  
24 signs a declaration that the plates were lost, mutilated or illegible;  
25 and

- 26 (b) Complies with the provisions of subsection 6.

27 5. The Department shall issue substitute number plates and, if  
28 applicable, a substitute decal, if the applicant:

- 29 (a) Signs a declaration that the plates were stolen; and
- 30 (b) Complies with the provisions of subsection 6.

31 6. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, an applicant  
32 who desires duplicate number plates or substitute number plates  
33 must make application for renewal of registration. ~~Credit~~ *Except*  
34 *as otherwise provided in subsection 7 of NRS 482.260, credit* must  
35 be allowed for the portion of the registration fee and governmental  
36 services tax attributable to the remainder of the current registration  
37 period. In lieu of making application for renewal of registration, an  
38 applicant may elect to make application solely for:

39 (a) Duplicate number plates or substitute number plates, and a  
40 substitute decal, if the previous license plates were lost, mutilated or  
41 illegible; or

42 (b) Substitute number plates and a substitute decal, if the  
43 previous license plates were stolen.

44 7. An applicant who makes the election described in subsection  
45 6 retains the current date of expiration for the registration of the



1 applicable vehicle and is not, as a prerequisite to receiving duplicate  
2 number plates or substitute number plates or a substitute decal,  
3 required to:

4 (a) Submit evidence of compliance with controls over emission;  
5 or

6 (b) Pay the registration fee and governmental services tax  
7 attributable to a full ~~12-month~~ period of registration.

8 **Sec. 6.** NRS 482.3667 is hereby amended to read as follows:

9 482.3667 1. The Department shall establish, design and  
10 otherwise prepare for issue personalized prestige license plates and  
11 shall establish all necessary procedures not inconsistent with this  
12 section for the application and issuance of such license plates.

13 2. The Department shall issue personalized prestige license  
14 plates, upon payment of the prescribed fee, to any person who  
15 otherwise complies with the laws relating to the registration and  
16 licensing of motor vehicles or trailers for use on private passenger  
17 cars, motorcycles, trucks or trailers ~~+~~, *except that such plates may*  
18 *not be issued for a full trailer or semitrailer that is registered*  
19 *pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 482.483.*

20 3. ~~Personalized~~ *Except as otherwise provided in section 1.4*  
21 *of this act, personalized* prestige license plates are valid for 12  
22 months and are renewable upon expiration. These plates may be  
23 transferred from one vehicle or trailer to another if the transfer and  
24 registration fees are paid as set out in this chapter.

25 4. In case of any conflict, the person who first made  
26 application for personalized prestige license plates and has  
27 continuously renewed them by payment of the required fee has  
28 priority.

29 5. The Department may limit by regulation the number of  
30 letters and numbers used and prohibit the use of inappropriate letters  
31 or combinations of letters and numbers.

32 6. The Department shall not assign to any person not holding  
33 the relevant office any letters and numbers denoting that the holder  
34 holds a public office.

35 **Sec. 7.** NRS 482.367002 is hereby amended to read as  
36 follows:

37 482.367002 1. A person may request that the Department  
38 design, prepare and issue a special license plate by submitting an  
39 application to the Department. A person may submit an application  
40 for a special license plate that is intended to generate financial  
41 support for an organization only if:

42 (a) For an organization which is not a governmental entity, the  
43 organization is established as a nonprofit charitable organization  
44 which provides services to the community relating to public health,  
45 education or general welfare;



1 (b) For an organization which is a governmental entity, the  
2 organization only uses the financial support generated by the special  
3 license plate for charitable purposes relating to public health,  
4 education or general welfare;

5 (c) The organization is registered with the Secretary of State, if  
6 registration is required by law, and has filed any documents required  
7 to remain registered with the Secretary of State;

8 (d) The name and purpose of the organization do not promote,  
9 advertise or endorse any specific product, brand name or service that  
10 is offered for profit;

11 (e) The organization is nondiscriminatory; and

12 (f) The license plate will not promote a specific religion, faith or  
13 antireligious belief.

14 2. An application submitted to the Department pursuant to  
15 subsection 1:

16 (a) Must be on a form prescribed and furnished by the  
17 Department;

18 (b) Must specify whether the special license plate being  
19 requested is intended to generate financial support for a particular  
20 cause or charitable organization and, if so, the name of the cause or  
21 charitable organization;

22 (c) Must include proof that the organization satisfies the  
23 requirements set forth in subsection 1;

24 (d) Must be accompanied by a surety bond posted with the  
25 Department in the amount of \$5,000; and

26 (e) May be accompanied by suggestions for the design of and  
27 colors to be used in the special license plate.

28 3. The Department may design and prepare a special license  
29 plate requested pursuant to subsection 1 if:

30 (a) The Department determines that the application for that plate  
31 complies with subsection 2; and

32 (b) The Commission on Special License Plates approves the  
33 application for that plate pursuant to subsection 5 of  
34 NRS 482.367004.

35 4. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.367008, the  
36 Department may issue a special license plate that:

37 (a) The Department has designed and prepared pursuant to this  
38 section;

39 (b) The Commission on Special License Plates has approved for  
40 issuance pursuant to subsection 5 of NRS 482.367004; and

41 (c) Complies with the requirements of subsection 7 of  
42 NRS 482.270,

43 ➤ for any passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon  
44 application by a person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to  
45 NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for





1 registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may  
2 request that personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to  
3 NRS 482.3667 be combined with a special license plate issued  
4 pursuant to this section if that person pays the fees for personalized  
5 prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the special license  
6 plate.

7 5. The Department must promptly release the surety bond  
8 posted pursuant to subsection 2:

9 (a) If the Department or the Commission on Special License  
10 Plates determines not to issue the special license plate; or

11 (b) If it is determined that at least 1,000 special license plates  
12 have been issued pursuant to the assessment of the viability of the  
13 design of the special license plate conducted pursuant to  
14 NRS 482.367008.

15 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
16 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
17 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

18 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
19 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
20 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
21 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

22 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
23 return them to the Department.

24 **Sec. 8.** NRS 482.3747 is hereby amended to read as follows:

25 482.3747 1. The Department, in cooperation with the Board  
26 of Regents and the athletic departments of the University of Nevada,  
27 Reno, and the University of Nevada, Las Vegas, shall design,  
28 prepare and issue collegiate license plates, using any appropriate  
29 colors and designs to represent each university.

30 2. The Department may issue collegiate license plates for any  
31 passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon application by any  
32 person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265  
33 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for registration  
34 and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
35 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
36 482.3667 be combined with collegiate license plates if that person  
37 pays the fees for the personalized prestige license plates in addition  
38 to the fees for the collegiate license plates pursuant to subsections 3  
39 and 4.

40 3. The fee for the collegiate license plates is \$35, in addition to  
41 all other applicable registration and license fees and governmental  
42 services taxes. Collegiate license plates are renewable upon the  
43 payment of \$10.

44 4. In addition to all fees for the license, registration and  
45 governmental services taxes, a person who requests a collegiate



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 license plate shall pay for the initial issuance of a plate an additional  
2 fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plate an additional fee of \$20  
3 for academic and athletic scholarships to students of the University  
4 of Nevada, Reno, and the University of Nevada, Las Vegas.

5 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
6 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the Collegiate  
7 License Plate Account in the State General Fund created pursuant to  
8 NRS 396.384.

9 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of  
10 collegiate plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section  
11 disposes of the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder  
12 may retain the plates and:

13 (a) Affix them to another vehicle which meets the requirements  
14 of this section if the transfer and registration fees are paid as set out  
15 in this chapter; or

16 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
17 return them to the Department.

18 **Sec. 9.** NRS 482.3748 is hereby amended to read as follows:

19 482.3748 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the  
20 Department, in cooperation with the Grand Lodge of Free and  
21 Accepted Masons of the State of Nevada, shall design, prepare and  
22 issue license plates that indicate affiliation with the Grand Lodge of  
23 Free and Accepted Masons using any colors and designs which the  
24 Department deems appropriate. The Department shall not design,  
25 prepare or issue the license plates unless it receives at least 250  
26 applications for the issuance of those plates.

27 2. The Department shall issue license plates that indicate  
28 affiliation with the Grand Lodge of Free and Accepted Masons for a  
29 passenger car or a light commercial vehicle upon application by a  
30 person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265  
31 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for registration  
32 and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
33 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
34 482.3667 be combined with license plates that indicate affiliation  
35 with the Grand Lodge of Free and Accepted Masons if that person  
36 pays the fees for the personalized prestige license plates in addition  
37 to the fees for the license plates that indicate affiliation with the  
38 Grand Lodge of Free and Accepted Masons.

39 3. An application for the issuance or renewal of license plates  
40 that indicate affiliation with the Grand Lodge of Free and Accepted  
41 Masons is void unless it has been stamped or otherwise validated by  
42 the Grand Lodge of Free and Accepted Masons. The Grand Lodge  
43 of Free and Accepted Masons may charge a fee for validating an  
44 application.



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 4. The fee payable to the Department for license plates that  
2 indicate affiliation with the Grand Lodge of Free and Accepted  
3 Masons is \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration and  
4 license fees and governmental services taxes. The license plates are  
5 renewable upon the payment to the Department of \$10 in addition to  
6 all other applicable registration and license fees and governmental  
7 services taxes.

8 5. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
9 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
10 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder may retain the  
11 plates and:

12 (a) Affix them to another vehicle that meets the requirements of  
13 this section if the transfer and registration fees are paid as set out in  
14 this chapter; or

15 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
16 return them to the Department.

17 6. For the purposes of this section, "Grand Lodge of Free and  
18 Accepted Masons" means the Grand Lodge of Free and Accepted  
19 Masons of the State of Nevada, or its successor, and any recognized  
20 sister jurisdiction or organization of the Grand Lodge of Free and  
21 Accepted Masons.

22 **Sec. 10.** NRS 482.3749 is hereby amended to read as follows:

23 482.3749 1. The Department shall, in cooperation with the  
24 Nevada Commission on Sports and using any colors and designs  
25 that the Department deems appropriate, design, prepare and issue  
26 license plates which indicate status as a hall of fame athlete. The  
27 design of the license plates must include the words "hall of fame."

28 2. The Department shall issue license plates that indicate status  
29 as a hall of fame athlete for a passenger car or a light commercial  
30 vehicle upon application by a person who is entitled to license plates  
31 pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the  
32 requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter.  
33 A person may request that personalized prestige license plates  
34 issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates  
35 that indicate status as a hall of fame athlete if that person pays the  
36 fees for the personalized prestige license plates in addition to the  
37 fees for the license plates that indicate status as a hall of fame  
38 athlete.

39 3. An application for the issuance or renewal of license plates  
40 that indicate status as a hall of fame athlete is void unless it is  
41 accompanied by documentation which, in the determination of the  
42 Department, provides reasonable proof of identity and status as a  
43 hall of fame athlete.

44 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
45 fees and governmental services taxes:



1 (a) A person who requests license plates that indicate status as a  
2 hall of fame athlete shall pay a fee to the Department of \$35.

3 (b) License plates that indicate status as a hall of fame athlete  
4 are renewable upon the payment to the Department of \$10.

5 5. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
6 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
7 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder may retain the  
8 plates and:

9 (a) Affix them to another vehicle that meets the requirements of  
10 this section if the transfer and registration fees are paid as set forth  
11 in this chapter; or

12 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
13 return them to the Department.

14 6. As used in this section, "hall of fame athlete" means a  
15 current or former athlete who has been inducted into a hall of fame  
16 pertaining to the sport in which the athlete participates or  
17 participated, including, but not limited to:

18 (a) The National Baseball Hall of Fame, located in  
19 Cooperstown, New York.

20 (b) The Basketball Hall of Fame, located in Springfield,  
21 Massachusetts.

22 (c) The Pro Football Hall of Fame, located in Canton, Ohio.

23 (d) The Hockey Hall of Fame, located in Toronto, Ontario,  
24 Canada.

25 (e) The National Soccer Hall of Fame, located in Oneonta, New  
26 York.

27 (f) The International Tennis Hall of Fame, located in Newport,  
28 Rhode Island.

29 (g) The Pro Rodeo Hall of Fame, located in Colorado Springs,  
30 Colorado.

31 (h) Any hall of fame which has been established at a university,  
32 state college or community college within the Nevada System of  
33 Higher Education.

34 **Sec. 10.5.** NRS 482.375 is hereby amended to read as follows:

35 482.375 1. An owner of a motor vehicle who is a resident of  
36 the State of Nevada and who holds an unrevoked and unexpired  
37 official amateur radio station license issued by the Federal  
38 Communications Commission, upon application accompanied by  
39 proof of ownership of that license, complying with the state motor  
40 vehicle laws relating to registration and licensing of motor vehicles,  
41 and upon the payment of the regular license fee for plates as  
42 prescribed by law, and the payment of an additional fee of \$35, must  
43 be issued a license plate or plates, upon which in lieu of the numbers  
44 as prescribed by law must be inscribed the words "RADIO  
45 AMATEUR" and the official amateur radio call letters of the



1 applicant as assigned by the Federal Communications Commission.  
2 The annual fee for a renewal sticker is \$10 unless waived by the  
3 Department pursuant to subsection 2. The plate or plates may be  
4 used only on a private passenger car, trailer or travel trailer or on a  
5 noncommercial truck **H**, *except that such plates may not be used*  
6 *on a full trailer or semitrailer that is registered pursuant to*  
7 *subsection 3 of NRS 482.483.*

8 2. The Department may waive the annual fee for a renewal  
9 sticker if the applicant for renewal:

10 (a) Submits with the application for renewal a statement under  
11 penalty of perjury that the applicant will assist in communications  
12 during local, state and federal emergencies; and

13 (b) Satisfies any other requirements established by the  
14 Department by regulation for such a waiver.

15 3. The cost of the die and modifications necessary for the  
16 issuance of a license plate pursuant to this section must be paid from  
17 private sources without any expense to the State of Nevada.

18 4. The Department may adopt regulations:

19 (a) To ensure compliance with all state license laws relating to  
20 the use and operation of a motor vehicle before issuance of the  
21 plates in lieu of the regular Nevada license plate or plates.

22 (b) Setting forth the requirements and procedure for obtaining a  
23 waiver of the annual fee for a renewal sticker.

24 5. All applications for the plates authorized by this section  
25 must be made to the Department.

26 **Sec. 11.** NRS 482.3753 is hereby amended to read as follows:

27 482.3753 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the  
28 Department, in cooperation with professional full-time salaried  
29 firefighters in the State of Nevada, shall design, prepare and issue  
30 license plates that recognize current or former employment as a  
31 professional full-time salaried firefighter using any colors and  
32 designs which the Department deems appropriate. The Department  
33 shall not design, prepare or issue the license plates unless it receives  
34 at least 250 applications for the issuance of those plates.

35 2. The Department shall issue license plates that recognize  
36 current or former employment as a professional full-time salaried  
37 firefighter for a passenger car or a light commercial vehicle upon  
38 application by a qualified person who is entitled to license plates  
39 pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the  
40 requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter.  
41 A person may request that personalized prestige license plates  
42 issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates  
43 that recognize current or former employment as a professional full-  
44 time salaried firefighter if that person pays the fees for the  
45 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the



1 license plates that recognize current or former employment as a  
2 professional full-time salaried firefighter.

3 3. An application for the issuance or renewal of license plates  
4 that recognize current or former employment as a professional full-  
5 time salaried firefighter is void unless it is accompanied by  
6 documentation which, in the determination of the Department,  
7 provides reasonable proof of the identity of the applicant and proof  
8 of the applicant's:

9 (a) Current employment as a professional full-time salaried  
10 firefighter; or

11 (b) Status as a former professional full-time salaried firefighter  
12 who retired from employment after completing at least 10 years of  
13 creditable service as a firefighter within this State with:

14 (1) A fire department; or

15 (2) A federal or state agency, the duties of which involve the  
16 prevention and suppression of fires, including, without limitation,  
17 the Bureau of Land Management and the Division of Forestry of the  
18 State Department of Conservation and Natural Resources.

19 4. Proof of an applicant's current or former employment as a  
20 professional full-time salaried firefighter must consist of:

21 (a) An identification card issued by the Professional Fire  
22 Fighters of Nevada or its successor;

23 (b) An identification card issued by the Nevada Fire Chiefs  
24 Association or its successor; or

25 (c) A letter certifying the applicant's current or former  
26 employment as a professional full-time salaried firefighter, which  
27 letter must be from:

28 (1) The Professional Fire Fighters of Nevada or its successor;

29 (2) The Nevada Fire Chiefs Association or its successor; or

30 (3) The chief officer of a federal or state agency, the duties of  
31 which involve the prevention and suppression of fires, including,  
32 without limitation, the Bureau of Land Management and the  
33 Division of Forestry of the State Department of Conservation and  
34 Natural Resources.

35 5. The fee payable to the Department for license plates that  
36 recognize current or former employment as a professional full-time  
37 salaried firefighter is \$35, in addition to all other applicable  
38 registration and license fees and governmental services taxes. The  
39 license plates are renewable upon the payment to the Department of  
40 \$10 in addition to all other applicable registration and license fees  
41 and governmental services taxes.

42 6. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
43 fees and governmental services taxes and the fees prescribed in  
44 subsection 5, a person who requests a set of license plates that  
45 recognize current or former employment as a professional full-time



1 salaried firefighter must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an  
2 additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional  
3 fee of \$20 to support the Professional Fire Fighters of Nevada  
4 Benevolent Association.

5 7. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
6 subsection 6 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General  
7 Fund. The State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the  
8 fees deposited pursuant to this subsection to the Professional Fire  
9 Fighters of Nevada Benevolent Association.

10 8. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
11 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
12 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

13 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
14 the requirements of this section if the transfer and registration fees  
15 are paid as set out in this chapter; or

16 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
17 return them to the Department.

18 9. As used in this section, "professional full-time salaried  
19 firefighter" means a person employed in this State in a full-time  
20 salaried occupation of fire fighting for the benefit or safety of the  
21 public.

22 **Sec. 12.** NRS 482.3754 is hereby amended to read as follows:

23 482.3754 1. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the  
24 Department, in cooperation with the Nevada State Firefighters'  
25 Association or its successor, shall design, prepare and issue license  
26 plates that recognize current or former service as a volunteer  
27 firefighter using any colors and designs which the Department  
28 deems appropriate. The Department shall not design, prepare or  
29 issue the license plates unless it receives at least 250 applications for  
30 the issuance of those plates.

31 2. The Department shall issue license plates that recognize  
32 current or former service as a volunteer firefighter for a passenger  
33 car or a light commercial vehicle upon application by a qualified  
34 person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265  
35 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for registration  
36 and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
37 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
38 482.3667 be combined with license plates that recognize current or  
39 former service as a volunteer firefighter if that person pays the fees  
40 for the personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for  
41 the license plates that recognize current or former service as a  
42 volunteer firefighter.

43 3. An application for the issuance or renewal of license plates  
44 that recognize current or former service as a volunteer firefighter is  
45 void unless it is accompanied by documentation which, in the



1 determination of the Department, provides reasonable proof of the  
2 identity of the applicant and proof of the applicant's current service  
3 as a volunteer firefighter or status as a former volunteer firefighter  
4 who retired from service as a volunteer firefighter within this State  
5 after completing at least 10 years of active service. Proof of an  
6 applicant's current or former service as a volunteer firefighter must  
7 consist of:

8 (a) An identification card which indicates that the applicant  
9 currently serves as a volunteer firefighter; or

10 (b) A letter from the chief officer of a volunteer or combination  
11 fire department certifying the applicant's current or former service  
12 as a volunteer firefighter.

13 4. The fee payable to the Department for license plates that  
14 recognize current or former service as a volunteer firefighter is \$35,  
15 in addition to all other applicable registration and license fees and  
16 governmental services taxes. The license plates are renewable upon  
17 the payment to the Department of \$10 in addition to all other  
18 applicable registration and license fees and governmental services  
19 taxes.

20 5. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
21 fees and governmental services taxes and the fees prescribed in  
22 subsection 4, a person who requests a set of license plates that  
23 recognize current or former service as a volunteer firefighter must  
24 pay for the initial issuance of the plates an additional fee of \$25 and  
25 for each renewal of the plates an additional fee of \$20 to support the  
26 training of volunteer firefighters.

27 6. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
28 subsection 5 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General  
29 Fund. The State Treasurer shall account separately for the money  
30 deposited pursuant to this subsection and reserve such money for  
31 expenditure by the State Fire Marshal in accordance with this  
32 subsection. The State Fire Marshal may expend the money reserved  
33 pursuant to this subsection solely for the support of, and to pay  
34 expenses related to, training for volunteer firefighters provided by or  
35 as directed by the Board of Directors of the Nevada State  
36 Firefighters' Association or its successor.

37 7. If, during a registration ~~year~~ *period*, the holder of license  
38 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
39 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

40 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
41 the requirements of this section if the transfer and registration fees  
42 are paid as set out in this chapter; or

43 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
44 return them to the Department.

45 8. As used in this section:





1 (a) "Combination fire department" means a fire department that  
2 is:

3 (1) Served by both volunteer and full-time salaried  
4 firefighters; and

5 (2) Recognized as such by the State Fire Marshal.

6 (b) "Volunteer fire department" means a fire department  
7 recognized as a bona fide volunteer fire department by the State Fire  
8 Marshal.

9 (c) "Volunteer firefighter" means a person who serves actively  
10 in an unpaid capacity in a volunteer or combination fire department  
11 within this State as a firefighter for the benefit or safety of the  
12 public.

13 **Sec. 13.** NRS 482.3763 is hereby amended to read as follows:

14 482.3763 1. The Director shall order the preparation of  
15 special license plates for the support of outreach programs and  
16 services for veterans and their families and establish procedures for  
17 the application for and issuance of the plates.

18 2. The Department shall, upon application therefor and  
19 payment of the prescribed fees, issue special license plates for the  
20 support of outreach programs and services for veterans and their  
21 families to:

22 (a) A veteran of the Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps or  
23 Coast Guard of the United States, a reserve component thereof or  
24 the National Guard;

25 (b) A female veteran; or

26 (c) The spouse, parent or child of a person described in  
27 paragraph (a) or (b).

28 ➔ The plates must be inscribed with the word "VETERAN" and  
29 with the seal of the branch of the Armed Forces of the United States,  
30 the seal of the National Guard or an image representative of the  
31 female veterans, as applicable, requested by the applicant. A person  
32 may request that personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant  
33 to NRS 482.3667 be combined with special license plates for the  
34 support of outreach programs and services for veterans and their  
35 families if that person pays the fees for the personalized prestige  
36 license plates in addition to the fees for the special license plates for  
37 the support of outreach programs and services for veterans and their  
38 families pursuant to subsection 4.

39 3. If, during a registration ~~year~~ *period*, the holder of special  
40 plates issued pursuant to this section disposes of the vehicle to  
41 which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

42 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle which  
43 meets the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for  
44 the transfer of the registration and any registration fee or  
45 governmental services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
2 return them to the Department.

3 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
4 fees and governmental services taxes, and to the special fee imposed  
5 pursuant to NRS 482.3764 for the support of outreach programs and  
6 services for veterans and their families, the fee for:

7 (a) The initial issuance of the special license plates is \$35.

8 (b) The annual renewal sticker is \$10.

9 5. If the special plates issued pursuant to this section are lost,  
10 stolen or mutilated, the owner of the vehicle may secure a set of  
11 replacement license plates from the Department for a fee of \$10.

12 **Sec. 14.** NRS 482.379 is hereby amended to read as follows:

13 482.379 1. The Director may order the design and  
14 preparation of license plates which commemorate the 125th  
15 anniversary of Nevada's admission into the Union and establish the  
16 procedures for the application and issuance of the plates.

17 2. The Department may designate any colors, numbers and  
18 letters for the commemorative plates.

19 3. A person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS  
20 482.265 may apply for commemorative license plates.

21 4. The fee for the commemorative license plates is \$10, in  
22 addition to all other applicable registration and license fees and  
23 governmental services taxes. If a person is eligible for and applies  
24 for any special license plates issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667,  
25 482.3672, 482.3675, 482.368 or 482.370 to 482.3825, inclusive, and  
26 applies to have those special license plates combined with  
27 commemorative plates, the person must pay the fees for the special  
28 license plates in addition to the fee for the commemorative plates.

29 5. In addition to all fees for the license, registration and  
30 governmental services taxes, a person who is eligible for and applies  
31 for commemorative plates must pay \$25 for the celebration of the  
32 125th anniversary of Nevada's admission into the Union. The fees  
33 for the license, registration, and governmental services taxes and the  
34 charge for the celebration may be paid with a single check.

35 6. Commemorative plates are renewable upon the payment of  
36 \$10.

37 7. If during a registration ~~year~~ *period*, the holder of  
38 commemorative plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this  
39 section disposes of the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the  
40 holder may retain the plates and:

41 (a) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
42 return them to the Department; or

43 (b) Affix them to another vehicle which meets the requirements  
44 of this section if the transfer and registration fees are paid as is  
45 provided for in this chapter.



1 8. Except as otherwise provided by subsection 10, if a  
2 commemorative license plate or set of license plates issued pursuant  
3 to the provisions of this section is lost, stolen or mutilated, the  
4 owner of the vehicle may secure a replacement license plate or set  
5 of replacement license plates, as the case may be, from the  
6 Department upon payment of the fees set forth in subsection 2 of  
7 NRS 482.500.

8 9. The Department shall, for each set of commemorative  
9 license plates that it issues:

10 (a) Deposit the \$25 collected for the celebration of the 125th  
11 anniversary of Nevada's admission into the Union with the State  
12 Treasurer for credit to the Account for Nevada's 125th Anniversary  
13 in the State General Fund;

14 (b) Deposit \$7.50 with the State Treasurer for credit to the  
15 Motor Vehicle Fund pursuant to the provisions of NRS 482.180;  
16 and

17 (c) Deposit \$2.50 with the State Treasurer for credit to the  
18 Department to reimburse the Department for the cost of  
19 manufacturing the license plates.

20 10. The Department shall not:

21 (a) Issue the commemorative license plates after October 31,  
22 1990.

23 (b) Issue replacement commemorative license plates after  
24 June 30, 1995.

25 **Sec. 15.** NRS 482.37903 is hereby amended to read as  
26 follows:

27 482.37903 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
28 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the Board of  
29 Museums and History of the Department of Tourism and Cultural  
30 Affairs, shall design, prepare and issue license plates which  
31 commemorate the 100th anniversary of the founding of the City of  
32 Las Vegas, using any colors and designs that the Department deems  
33 appropriate. The Department shall not design, prepare or issue the  
34 commemorative license plates unless it receives at least 250  
35 applications for the issuance of those plates.

36 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
37 issuance of the commemorative license plates, the Department shall  
38 issue those plates for a passenger car or light commercial vehicle  
39 upon application by a person who is entitled to license plates  
40 pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the  
41 requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter.  
42 A person may request that personalized prestige license plates  
43 issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with the  
44 commemorative license plates if that person pays the fees for



1 the personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
2 commemorative license plates pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.

3 3. The fee for the commemorative license plates is \$35, in  
4 addition to all other applicable registration and license fees and  
5 governmental services taxes. The license plates are renewable upon  
6 the payment of \$10.

7 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
8 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
9 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of the commemorative  
10 license plates must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an  
11 additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional  
12 fee of \$20, to be distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

13 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
14 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General  
15 Fund. The State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the  
16 fees to the City Treasurer of the City of Las Vegas to be used to pay  
17 for projects relating to the commemoration of the history of the City  
18 of Las Vegas, including, without limitation, historical markers, tours  
19 of historic sites and improvements to or restoration of historic  
20 buildings or structures.

21 6. If, during a registration ~~year~~ *period*, the holder of the  
22 commemorative license plates disposes of the vehicle to which the  
23 commemorative license plates are affixed, the holder shall:

24 (a) Retain the commemorative license plates and affix them to  
25 another vehicle that meets the requirements of this section if the  
26 holder pays the fee for the transfer of the registration and any  
27 registration fee or governmental services tax due pursuant to  
28 NRS 482.399; or

29 (b) Within 30 days after removing the commemorative license  
30 plates from the vehicle, return them to the Department.

31 **Sec. 16.** NRS 482.37905 is hereby amended to read as  
32 follows:

33 482.37905 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
34 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the organizations in  
35 this State which assist in the donation and procurement of human  
36 organs, shall design, prepare and issue license plates that encourage  
37 the donation of human organs using any colors and designs that the  
38 Department deems appropriate. The Department shall not design,  
39 prepare or issue the license plates unless it receives at least 250  
40 applications for the issuance of those plates.

41 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
42 issuance of license plates that encourage the donation of human  
43 organs, the Department shall issue those plates for a passenger car  
44 or light commercial vehicle upon application by a person who is  
45 entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who



1 otherwise complies with the requirements for registration and  
2 licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
3 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
4 482.3667 be combined with license plates that encourage the  
5 donation of human organs if that person pays the fees for the  
6 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for  
7 the license plates which encourage the donation of human organs  
8 pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.

9 3. The fee for license plates to encourage the donation of  
10 human organs is \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration  
11 and license fees and governmental services taxes. The license plates  
12 are renewable upon the payment of \$10.

13 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
14 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
15 subsection 3, a person who, on or after July 1, 2003:

16 (a) Requests a set of license plates to encourage the donation of  
17 human organs must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an  
18 additional fee of \$25, to be deposited pursuant to subsection 5; and

19 (b) Renews a set of license plates to encourage the donation of  
20 human organs must pay for each renewal of the plates an additional  
21 fee of \$20, to be deposited pursuant to subsection 5.

22 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
23 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the Anatomical  
24 Gift Account created in the State General Fund by NRS 460.150.

25 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
26 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
27 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

28 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
29 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
30 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
31 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

32 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
33 return them to the Department.

34 **Sec. 17.** NRS 482.37917 is hereby amended to read as  
35 follows:

36 482.37917 1. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection  
37 and NRS 482.38279, the Department, in cooperation with the State  
38 Department of Agriculture and the Nevada Future Farmers of  
39 America Foundation or its successor, shall design, prepare and issue  
40 license plates which indicate support for the promotion of  
41 agriculture within this State, including, without limitation, support  
42 for the programs and activities of the Future Farmers of America or  
43 its successor within this State, using any colors that the Department  
44 deems appropriate. The design of the license plates must include the  
45 phrase "People Grow Things Here!" and an identifying symbol



1 furnished by the Nevada Future Farmers of America Foundation or  
2 its successor. The Department shall not design, prepare or issue the  
3 license plates unless it receives at least 250 applications for the  
4 issuance of those plates.

5 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
6 issuance of license plates which indicate support for the promotion  
7 of agriculture within this State, the Department shall issue those  
8 plates for a passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon  
9 application by a person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to  
10 NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for  
11 registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may  
12 request that personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to  
13 NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates which indicate  
14 support for the promotion of agriculture within this State if that  
15 person pays the fees for the personalized prestige license plates in  
16 addition to the fees for the license plates which indicate support for  
17 the promotion of agriculture within this State pursuant to  
18 subsections 3 and 4.

19 3. The fee for license plates which indicate support for the  
20 promotion of agriculture within this State is \$35, in addition to all  
21 other applicable registration and license fees and governmental  
22 services taxes. The license plates are renewable upon the payment of  
23 \$10.

24 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
25 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
26 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates which  
27 indicate support for the promotion of agriculture within this State  
28 must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an additional fee of  
29 \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional fee of \$20, to be  
30 distributed in accordance with subsection 5.

31 5. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.38279, the  
32 Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to subsection 4  
33 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General Fund. The  
34 State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the fees  
35 deposited pursuant to this section in the following manner:

36 (a) Remit one-half of the fees to the Nevada Future Farmers of  
37 America Foundation or its successor for the support of programs  
38 and activities of the Future Farmers of America or its successor  
39 within this State.

40 (b) Deposit one-half of the fees for credit to the Account for  
41 License Plates for the Promotion of Agriculture Within this State  
42 created pursuant to NRS 561.411.

43 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
44 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
45 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
2 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
3 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
4 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

5 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
6 return them to the Department.

7 **Sec. 18.** NRS 482.379175 is hereby amended to read as  
8 follows:

9 482.379175 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
10 subsection and NRS 482.38279, the Department shall design,  
11 prepare and issue license plates for the appreciation of animals,  
12 using any colors and designs that the Department deems  
13 appropriate. The Department shall not design, prepare or issue the  
14 license plates unless it receives at least 250 applications for the  
15 issuance of those plates.

16 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
17 issuance of license plates for the appreciation of animals, the  
18 Department shall issue those plates for a passenger car or light  
19 commercial vehicle upon application by a person who is entitled to  
20 license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies  
21 with the requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this  
22 chapter. A person may request that personalized prestige license  
23 plates issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license  
24 plates for the appreciation of animals if that person pays the fees for  
25 the personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
26 license plates for the appreciation of animals pursuant to subsections  
27 3 and 4.

28 3. The fee for license plates for the appreciation of animals is  
29 \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration and license fees  
30 and governmental services taxes. The license plates are renewable  
31 upon the payment of \$10.

32 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
33 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
34 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
35 appreciation of animals must pay for the initial issuance of the plates  
36 an additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an  
37 additional fee of \$20, to be distributed in the manner prescribed in  
38 subsection 5.

39 5. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.38279, the  
40 Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to subsection 4  
41 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General Fund. The  
42 State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute to each county  
43 the fees collected for the preceding quarter for license plates for  
44 vehicles registered in that county. The money may be used by the  
45 county only:



1 (a) For programs that are approved by the board of county  
2 commissioners for the adoption of animals and for the spaying and  
3 neutering of animals.

4 (b) To make grants to nonprofit organizations to carry out the  
5 programs described in paragraph (a).

6 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
7 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
8 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

9 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
10 the requirements of this section if the transfer and registration fees  
11 are paid as set forth in this chapter; or

12 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
13 return them to the Department.

14 **Sec. 19.** NRS 482.37918 is hereby amended to read as  
15 follows:

16 482.37918 1. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection  
17 and NRS 482.38279, the Department, in cooperation with the  
18 Nevada Test Site Historical Foundation or its successor, shall  
19 design, prepare and issue license plates for the support of the  
20 preservation of the history of atomic testing in Nevada, using any  
21 colors and designs that the Department deems appropriate. The  
22 Department shall not design, prepare or issue the license plates  
23 unless it receives at least 250 applications for the issuance of those  
24 plates.

25 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
26 issuance of license plates for the support of the preservation of the  
27 history of atomic testing in Nevada, the Department shall issue those  
28 plates for a passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon  
29 application by a person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to  
30 NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for  
31 registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may  
32 request that personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to  
33 NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates for the support of  
34 the preservation of the history of atomic testing in Nevada if that  
35 person pays the fees for the personalized prestige license plates in  
36 addition to the fees for the license plates for the support of the  
37 preservation of the history of atomic testing in Nevada pursuant to  
38 subsections 3 and 4.

39 3. The fee for license plates for the support of the preservation  
40 of the history of atomic testing in Nevada is \$35, in addition to all  
41 other applicable registration and license fees and governmental  
42 services taxes. The license plates are renewable upon the payment of  
43 \$10.

44 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
45 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in





1 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
2 support of the preservation of the history of atomic testing in  
3 Nevada must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an additional  
4 fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional fee of  
5 \$20, to be distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

6 5. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.38279, the  
7 Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to subsection 4  
8 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General Fund. The  
9 State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the fees  
10 deposited pursuant to this subsection to the Nevada Test Site  
11 Historical Foundation or its successor for its programs and activities  
12 in support of the preservation of the history of atomic testing in  
13 Nevada.

14 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
15 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
16 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

17 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
18 the requirements of this section if the transfer and registration fees  
19 are paid as set forth in this chapter; or

20 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
21 return them to the Department.

22 **Sec. 20.** NRS 482.379185 is hereby amended to read as  
23 follows:

24 482.379185 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
25 subsection and NRS 482.38279, the Department, in cooperation  
26 with Nevada Ducks Unlimited or its successor, shall design, prepare  
27 and issue license plates for the support of the conservation of  
28 wetlands, using any colors and designs that the Department deems  
29 appropriate. The Department shall not design, prepare or issue the  
30 license plates unless it receives at least 1,000 applications for the  
31 issuance of those plates.

32 2. If the Department receives at least 1,000 applications for the  
33 issuance of license plates for the support of the conservation of  
34 wetlands, the Department shall issue those plates for a passenger car  
35 or light commercial vehicle upon application by a person who is  
36 entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who  
37 otherwise complies with the requirements for registration and  
38 licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
39 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
40 482.3667 be combined with license plates for the support of the  
41 conservation of wetlands if that person pays the fees for the  
42 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for  
43 the license plates for the support of the conservation of wetlands  
44 pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.



1 3. The fee for license plates for the support of the conservation  
2 of wetlands is \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration  
3 and license fees and governmental services taxes. The license plates  
4 are renewable upon the payment of \$10.

5 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
6 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
7 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
8 support of the conservation of wetlands must pay for the initial  
9 issuance of the plates an additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal  
10 of the plates an additional fee of \$20, to be distributed pursuant to  
11 subsection 5.

12 5. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.38279, the  
13 Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to subsection 4  
14 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General Fund. The  
15 State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the fees  
16 deposited pursuant to this subsection to the Treasurer of Nevada  
17 Ducks Unlimited or its successor for use by Nevada Ducks  
18 Unlimited or its successor in carrying out:

19 (a) Projects for the conservation of wetlands that are:

20 (1) Conducted within Nevada; and

21 (2) Sponsored or participated in by Nevada Ducks Unlimited  
22 or its successor; and

23 (b) Fundraising activities for the conservation of wetlands that  
24 are:

25 (1) Conducted within Nevada; and

26 (2) Sponsored or participated in by Nevada Ducks Unlimited  
27 or its successor.

28 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
29 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
30 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

31 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
32 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
33 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
34 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

35 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
36 return them to the Department.

37 7. As used in this section, "wetland" has the meaning ascribed  
38 to it in NRS 244.388.

39 **Sec. 21.** NRS 482.37919 is hereby amended to read as  
40 follows:

41 482.37919 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
42 subsection, the Department shall, in cooperation with the Board of  
43 Directors of the Las Vegas Valley Water District, design, prepare  
44 and issue license plates to support the desert preserve established by  
45 the Board of Directors of the Las Vegas Valley Water District. The



1 license plates may include any colors and designs that the  
2 Department deems appropriate.

3 2. The Department may issue license plates specified in  
4 subsection 1 for a passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon  
5 application by a person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to  
6 the provisions of NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with  
7 the requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to the  
8 provisions of this chapter. A person may request that personalized  
9 prestige license plates issued pursuant to the provisions of NRS  
10 482.3667 be combined with license plates specified in subsection 1  
11 if that person pays, in addition to the fees specified in subsections 3  
12 and 4, the fees for the personalized prestige license plates.

13 3. The fee for license plates specified in subsection 1 is \$35.  
14 The fee is in addition to any other applicable registration and license  
15 fees and governmental services taxes. The license plates are  
16 renewable upon the payment of \$10.

17 4. In addition to the fees for the license, registration and  
18 governmental services taxes, a person who requests the issuance of  
19 license plates specified in subsection 1 must pay:

20 (a) For the initial issuance of the plates, an additional fee of \$25;  
21 and

22 (b) For each renewal of the plates, an additional \$20 to support  
23 the desert preserve specified in subsection 1.

24 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
25 the provisions of subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to  
26 an Account for the Support of the Desert Preserve established by the  
27 Board of Directors of the Las Vegas Valley Water District. On or  
28 before January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1 of each year, the  
29 State Controller shall distribute the money deposited in the Account  
30 for the preceding quarter to the Board of Directors of the Las Vegas  
31 Valley Water District.

32 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
33 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
34 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder may retain the  
35 plates and:

36 (a) Affix the license plates to another vehicle that meets the  
37 requirements of this section if the transfer and registration fees are  
38 paid pursuant to the provisions of this chapter; or

39 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
40 return the plates to the Department.

41 **Sec. 22.** NRS 482.3792 is hereby amended to read as follows:

42 482.3792 1. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection,  
43 the Department of Motor Vehicles shall, in cooperation with the  
44 Nevada Arts Council of the Department of Tourism and Cultural  
45 Affairs, design, prepare and issue license plates for the support of



1 the education of children in the arts, using any colors and designs  
2 which the Department of Motor Vehicles deems appropriate. The  
3 Department of Motor Vehicles shall not design, prepare or issue  
4 the license plates unless it receives at least 250 applications for the  
5 issuance of those plates.

6 2. The Department of Motor Vehicles may issue license plates  
7 for the support of the education of children in the arts for a  
8 passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon application by a  
9 person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265  
10 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for registration  
11 and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
12 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
13 482.3667 be combined with license plates for the support of  
14 the education of children in the arts if that person pays the fee for  
15 the personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
16 license plates for the support of the education of children in the arts  
17 pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.

18 3. The fee for license plates for the support of the education of  
19 children in the arts is \$35, in addition to all other applicable  
20 registration and license fees and governmental services taxes. The  
21 license plates are renewable upon the payment of \$10.

22 4. In addition to all fees for the license, registration and  
23 governmental services taxes, a person who requests a set of license  
24 plates for the support of the education of children in the arts must  
25 pay for the initial issuance of the plates an additional fee of \$15 and  
26 for each renewal of the plates an additional fee of \$10 to finance  
27 programs which promote the education of children in the arts.

28 5. The Department of Motor Vehicles shall deposit the fees  
29 collected pursuant to subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit  
30 to the Account for License Plates for the Support of the Education  
31 of Children in the Arts created pursuant to NRS 233C.094.

32 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
33 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
34 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

35 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle which  
36 meets the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for  
37 the transfer of the registration and any registration fee or  
38 governmental services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

39 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
40 return them to the Department of Motor Vehicles.

41 **Sec. 23.** NRS 482.3793 is hereby amended to read as follows:

42 482.3793 1. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection,  
43 the Department, in cooperation with the Director of the  
44 Clearinghouse established pursuant to NRS 432.170, shall design,  
45 prepare and issue license plates for the support of missing or



1 exploited children. The license plates must be inscribed with a hand.  
2 The Department may designate any appropriate colors for the  
3 license plates. The Department shall not design, prepare or issue  
4 the license plates unless it receives at least 250 applications for the  
5 issuance of those plates.

6 2. The Department may issue license plates for the support of  
7 missing or exploited children for any passenger car or light  
8 commercial vehicle upon application by any person who is entitled  
9 to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise  
10 complies with the requirements for registration and licensing  
11 pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that personalized  
12 prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be  
13 combined with license plates for the support of missing or exploited  
14 children if that person pays the fees for the personalized prestige  
15 license plates in addition to the fees for the license plates for the  
16 support of missing or exploited children pursuant to subsections 3  
17 and 4.

18 3. The fee for license plates for the support of missing or  
19 exploited children is \$35, in addition to all other applicable  
20 registration and license fees and governmental services taxes. The  
21 license plates are renewable upon the payment of \$10.

22 4. In addition to all fees for the license, registration and  
23 governmental services taxes, a person who requests a set of license  
24 plates for the support of missing or exploited children must pay for  
25 the initial issuance of the plates an additional fee of \$15 and for each  
26 renewal of the plates an additional fee of \$10 to carry out the  
27 provisions of NRS 432.150 to 432.220, inclusive.

28 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
29 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the Account for  
30 License Plates for the Support of Missing or Exploited Children  
31 created pursuant to NRS 432.154.

32 6. If, during a registration ~~year~~ *period*, the holder of license  
33 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
34 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder may retain the  
35 plates and:

36 (a) Affix them to another vehicle which meets the requirements  
37 of this section if the transfer and registration fees are paid as set out  
38 in this chapter; or

39 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
40 return them to the Department.

41 **Sec. 24.** NRS 482.37933 is hereby amended to read as  
42 follows:

43 482.37933 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
44 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the Division of  
45 State Lands of the State Department of Conservation and Natural



1 Resources, shall design, prepare and issue license plates for the  
2 support of the preservation and restoration of the natural  
3 environment of the Lake Tahoe Basin using any colors that the  
4 Department deems appropriate. The design of the license plates  
5 must include a depiction of Lake Tahoe and its surrounding area.  
6 The Department shall not design, prepare or issue the license plates  
7 unless it receives at least 250 applications for the issuance of those  
8 plates.

9 2. The Department may issue license plates for the support of  
10 the preservation and restoration of the natural environment of the  
11 Lake Tahoe Basin for a passenger car or light commercial vehicle  
12 upon application by a person who is entitled to license plates  
13 pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the  
14 requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter.  
15 A person may request that personalized prestige license plates  
16 issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates  
17 for the support of the preservation and restoration of the natural  
18 environment of the Lake Tahoe Basin if that person pays the fees for  
19 the personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
20 license plates for the support of the preservation and restoration of  
21 the natural environment of the Lake Tahoe Basin pursuant to  
22 subsections 3 and 4.

23 3. The fee for license plates for the support of the preservation  
24 and restoration of the natural environment of the Lake Tahoe Basin  
25 is \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration and license  
26 fees and governmental services taxes. The license plates are  
27 renewable upon the payment of \$10.

28 4. In addition to all fees for the license, registration and  
29 governmental services taxes, a person who requests a set of license  
30 plates for the support of the preservation and restoration of the  
31 natural environment of the Lake Tahoe Basin must pay for the initial  
32 issuance of the plates an additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal  
33 of the plates an additional fee of \$20 to finance projects for the  
34 preservation and restoration of the natural environment of the Lake  
35 Tahoe Basin.

36 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
37 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the Account for  
38 License Plates for the Support of the Preservation and Restoration of  
39 the Natural Environment of the Lake Tahoe Basin created pursuant  
40 to NRS 321.5951.

41 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
42 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
43 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder may retain the  
44 plates and:



1 (a) Affix them to another vehicle that meets the requirements of  
2 this section if the transfer and registration fees are paid as set out in  
3 this chapter; or

4 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
5 return them to the Department.

6 **Sec. 25.** NRS 482.37934 is hereby amended to read as  
7 follows:

8 482.37934 1. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection  
9 and NRS 482.38279, the Department, in cooperation with the  
10 Outside Las Vegas Foundation or its successor, shall design, prepare  
11 and issue license plates to support preserving the federal lands  
12 surrounding Las Vegas, promoting community stewardship of those  
13 valuable resources, enriching visitors' experience and enhancing the  
14 quality of life of local residents, using any colors and designs that  
15 the Department deems appropriate. The Department shall not  
16 design, prepare or issue the license plates unless it receives at least  
17 250 applications for the issuance of those plates.

18 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
19 issuance of license plates pursuant to this section, the Department  
20 shall issue those plates for a passenger car or light commercial  
21 vehicle upon application by a person who is entitled to license plates  
22 pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the  
23 requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter.  
24 A person may request that personalized prestige license plates  
25 issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates  
26 issued pursuant to this section if that person pays the fees for the  
27 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees prescribed  
28 pursuant to subsections 3 and 4 for the license plates issued pursuant  
29 to this section.

30 3. The fee for license plates issued pursuant to this section is  
31 \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration and license fees  
32 and governmental services taxes. The license plates are renewable  
33 upon the payment of \$10.

34 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
35 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
36 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates pursuant  
37 to this section must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an  
38 additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional  
39 fee of \$20 to be distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

40 5. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.38279, the  
41 Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to subsection 4  
42 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General Fund. The  
43 State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the fees  
44 deposited pursuant to this section to the Outside Las Vegas  
45 Foundation or its successor for its programs and activities in support



1 of preserving the federal lands surrounding Las Vegas, promoting  
2 community stewardship of those valuable resources, enriching  
3 visitors' experience and enhancing the quality of life of local  
4 residents.

5 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
6 plates issued pursuant to this section disposes of the vehicle to  
7 which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

8 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
9 the requirements of this section if the transfer and registration fees  
10 are paid as set forth in this chapter; or

11 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
12 return them to the Department.

13 **Sec. 26.** NRS 482.37935 is hereby amended to read as  
14 follows:

15 482.37935 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
16 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the Division of  
17 State Lands of the State Department of Conservation and Natural  
18 Resources, shall design, prepare and issue license plates for the  
19 support of the natural environment of the Mount Charleston area  
20 using any colors that the Department deems appropriate. The design  
21 of the license plates must include a depiction of Mount Charleston  
22 and its surrounding area. The Department shall not design, prepare  
23 or issue the license plates unless it receives at least 250 applications  
24 for the issuance of those plates.

25 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
26 issuance of license plates for the support of the natural environment  
27 of the Mount Charleston area, the Department shall issue those  
28 plates for a passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon  
29 application by a person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to  
30 NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for  
31 registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may  
32 request that personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to  
33 NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates for the support of  
34 the natural environment of the Mount Charleston area if that person  
35 pays the fees for the personalized prestige license plates in addition  
36 to the fees for the license plates for the support of the natural  
37 environment of the Mount Charleston area pursuant to subsections 3  
38 and 4.

39 3. The fee for license plates for the support of the natural  
40 environment of the Mount Charleston area is \$35, in addition to all  
41 other applicable registration and license fees and governmental  
42 services taxes. The license plates are renewable upon the payment of  
43 \$10.

44 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
45 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*



1 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
2 support of the natural environment of the Mount Charleston area  
3 must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an additional fee of  
4 \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional fee of \$20, to be  
5 distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

6 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
7 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General  
8 Fund. The State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the  
9 fees deposited pursuant to this subsection to the Board of County  
10 Commissioners of Clark County. The fees distributed pursuant to  
11 this subsection:

12 (a) May be used by the Board of County Commissioners, with  
13 the advice of the Mount Charleston Town Advisory Board or its  
14 successor, only:

15 (1) For the support of programs for the natural environment  
16 of the Mount Charleston area, including, without limitation,  
17 programs to improve the wildlife habitat, the ecosystem, the forest,  
18 public access to the area and its recreational use.

19 (2) To make grants to governmental entities and nonprofit  
20 organizations to carry out the programs described in  
21 subparagraph (1).

22 (b) Must not be used to replace or supplant money available  
23 from other sources.

24 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
25 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
26 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

27 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
28 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
29 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
30 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

31 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
32 return them to the Department.

33 **Sec. 27.** NRS 482.379355 is hereby amended to read as  
34 follows:

35 482.379355 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
36 subsection and NRS 482.38279, the Department, in cooperation  
37 with the Immigrant Workers Citizenship Project or its successor,  
38 shall design, prepare and issue license plates for the support of  
39 naturalized citizenship, using any colors and designs that the  
40 Department deems appropriate. The design of the license plates  
41 must include a depiction of the Aztec Calendar. The Department  
42 shall not design, prepare or issue the license plates unless it receives  
43 at least 1,000 applications for the issuance of those plates.

44 2. If the Department receives at least 1,000 applications for the  
45 issuance of license plates for the support of naturalized citizenship,



1 the Department shall issue those plates for a passenger car or light  
2 commercial vehicle upon application by a person who is entitled to  
3 license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies  
4 with the requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this  
5 chapter. A person may request that personalized prestige license  
6 plates issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license  
7 plates for the support of naturalized citizenship if that person pays  
8 the fees for the personalized prestige license plates in addition to the  
9 fees for the license plates for the support of naturalized citizenship  
10 pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.

11 3. The fee for license plates for the support of naturalized  
12 citizenship is \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration and  
13 license fees and governmental services taxes. The license plates are  
14 renewable upon the payment of \$10.

15 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
16 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
17 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
18 support of naturalized citizenship must pay for the initial issuance of  
19 the plates an additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates  
20 an additional fee of \$20, to be distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

21 5. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.38279, the  
22 Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to subsection 4  
23 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General Fund. The  
24 State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the fees  
25 deposited pursuant to this subsection to the Immigrant Workers  
26 Citizenship Project or its successor for its programs and charitable  
27 activities in support of naturalized citizenship.

28 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
29 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
30 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

31 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
32 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
33 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
34 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

35 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
36 return them to the Department.

37 **Sec. 28.** NRS 482.379365 is hereby amended to read as  
38 follows:

39 482.379365 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
40 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the State  
41 Emergency Response Commission, shall design, prepare and issue  
42 "United We Stand" license plates to reflect public solidarity after  
43 the acts of terrorism committed on September 11, 2001. The design  
44 of the license plates must include the phrase "United We Stand" and  
45 incorporate an image of the flag of the United States. The colors red,



1 white and blue must be displayed on the license plates. The  
2 Department shall not design, prepare or issue the license plates  
3 unless it receives at least 1,000 applications for the issuance of those  
4 plates.

5 2. If the Department receives at least 1,000 applications for the  
6 issuance of "United We Stand" license plates, the Department shall  
7 issue those plates for a passenger car or light commercial vehicle  
8 upon application by a person who is entitled to license plates  
9 pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the  
10 requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter.  
11 A person may request that personalized prestige license plates  
12 issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with "United We  
13 Stand" license plates if that person pays the fees for the personalized  
14 prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the "United We  
15 Stand" license plates pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.

16 3. The fee for "United We Stand" license plates is \$35, in  
17 addition to all other applicable registration and license fees and  
18 governmental services taxes. The license plates are renewable upon  
19 the payment of \$10.

20 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
21 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
22 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of "United We Stand"  
23 license plates must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an  
24 additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional  
25 fee of \$20, to be distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

26 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
27 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the Contingency  
28 Account for Hazardous Materials created by NRS 459.735 in the  
29 State General Fund.

30 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
31 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
32 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

33 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
34 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
35 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
36 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

37 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
38 return them to the Department.

39 **Sec. 29.** NRS 482.37937 is hereby amended to read as  
40 follows:

41 482.37937 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
42 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the Pyramid Lake  
43 Paiute Tribe, shall design, prepare and issue license plates for the  
44 support of the preservation and restoration of the natural  
45 environment of the Lower Truckee River and Pyramid Lake using



1 any colors that the Department deems appropriate. The design of the  
2 license plates must include a depiction of Pyramid Lake and its  
3 surrounding area. The Department shall not design, prepare or issue  
4 the license plates unless it receives at least 250 applications for the  
5 issuance of those plates.

6 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
7 issuance of license plates for the support of the preservation and  
8 restoration of the natural environment of the Lower Truckee River  
9 and Pyramid Lake, the Department shall issue those plates for a  
10 passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon application by a  
11 person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265  
12 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for registration  
13 and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
14 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
15 482.3667 be combined with license plates for the support of the  
16 preservation and restoration of the natural environment of the Lower  
17 Truckee River and Pyramid Lake if that person pays the fees for the  
18 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
19 license plates for the support of the preservation and restoration of  
20 the natural environment of the Lower Truckee River and Pyramid  
21 Lake pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.

22 3. The fee for license plates for the support of the preservation  
23 and restoration of the natural environment of the Lower Truckee  
24 River and Pyramid Lake is \$35, in addition to all other applicable  
25 registration and license fees and governmental services taxes. The  
26 license plates are renewable upon the payment of \$10.

27 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
28 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
29 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
30 support of the preservation and restoration of the natural  
31 environment of the Lower Truckee River and Pyramid Lake must  
32 pay for the initial issuance of the plates an additional fee of \$25 and  
33 for each renewal of the plates an additional fee of \$20, to be  
34 distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

35 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
36 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General  
37 Fund. The State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the  
38 fees deposited pursuant to this subsection to the Pyramid Lake  
39 Paiute Tribe. The fees deposited pursuant to this subsection may  
40 only be used to:

41 (a) Protect, restore and enhance the water quality and natural  
42 resources of or relating to the Lower Truckee River and Pyramid  
43 Lake, including, without limitation:

44 (1) Providing matching money for grants that are available  
45 from federal or state agencies for such purposes; and



1 (2) Paying the costs of the Tribe's portion of joint projects  
2 with local, state or federal agencies for such purposes.

3 (b) Pay for, or match grants for, projects for the enhancement of  
4 the economic development of the area surrounding the Lower  
5 Truckee River and Pyramid Lake.

6 (c) Pay for the development and construction of an arena on the  
7 Pyramid Lake Indian Reservation for activities pertaining to  
8 fairgrounds or rodeos, or both, and to provide financial support for  
9 the establishment of a rodeo team or other designated activities at  
10 Pyramid Lake High School. Until October 1, 2006, 25 percent of the  
11 fees deposited pursuant to this subsection must be used for the  
12 purposes described in this paragraph.

13 6. If, during a registration ~~year~~ *period*, the holder of license  
14 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
15 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

16 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
17 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
18 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
19 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

20 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
21 return them to the Department.

22 **Sec. 30.** NRS 482.379375 is hereby amended to read as  
23 follows:

24 482.379375 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
25 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the Reno  
26 Recreation and Parks Commission or its successor, shall design,  
27 prepare and issue license plates for the support and enhancement of  
28 parks, recreation facilities and programs in the City of Reno, using  
29 any colors and designs that the Department deems appropriate. The  
30 Department shall not design, prepare or issue the license plates  
31 unless:

32 (a) The Commission on Special License Plates approves the  
33 design, preparation and issuance of those plates as described in  
34 NRS 482.367004; and

35 (b) The Department receives at least 1,000 applications for the  
36 issuance of those plates.

37 2. If the Commission on Special License Plates approves the  
38 design, preparation and issuance of license plates for the support and  
39 enhancement of parks, recreation facilities and programs in the City  
40 of Reno pursuant to subsection 1, and the Department receives at  
41 least 1,000 applications for the issuance of the license plates, the  
42 Department shall issue those plates for a passenger car or light  
43 commercial vehicle upon application by a person who is entitled to  
44 license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies  
45 with the requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this



1 chapter. A person may request that personalized prestige license  
2 plates issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license  
3 plates for the support and enhancement of parks, recreation facilities  
4 and programs in the City of Reno if that person pays the fees for the  
5 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
6 license plates for the support and enhancement of parks, recreation  
7 facilities and programs in the City of Reno pursuant to subsections 3  
8 and 4.

9 3. The fee for license plates for the support and enhancement  
10 of parks, recreation facilities and programs in the City of Reno is  
11 \$35, in addition to all other applicable registration and license fees  
12 and governmental services taxes. The license plates are renewable  
13 upon the payment of \$10.

14 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
15 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
16 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
17 support and enhancement of parks, recreation facilities and  
18 programs in the City of Reno must pay for the initial issuance of the  
19 plates an additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an  
20 additional fee of \$20 to be distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

21 5. The Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to  
22 subsection 4 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General  
23 Fund. The State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the  
24 fees deposited pursuant to this section to the City Treasurer of the  
25 City of Reno to be used to pay for the support and enhancement of  
26 parks, recreation facilities and programs in the City of Reno.

27 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
28 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
29 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

30 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
31 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
32 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
33 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

34 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
35 return them to the Department.

36 **Sec. 31.** NRS 482.37938 is hereby amended to read as  
37 follows:

38 482.37938 1. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection  
39 and NRS 482.38279, the Department, in cooperation with the Reno  
40 Rodeo Foundation and the Nevada High School Rodeo Association  
41 or their successors, shall design, prepare and issue license plates for  
42 the support of rodeos, including support for the programs and  
43 charitable activities of the Reno Rodeo Foundation and the Nevada  
44 High School Rodeo Association, or their successors, using any  
45 colors and designs that the Department deems appropriate. The



1 Department shall not design, prepare or issue the license plates  
2 unless it receives at least 250 applications for the issuance of those  
3 plates.

4 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
5 issuance of license plates for the support of rodeos, the Department  
6 shall issue those plates for a passenger car or light commercial  
7 vehicle upon application by a person who is entitled to license plates  
8 pursuant to NRS 482.265 and who otherwise complies with the  
9 requirements for registration and licensing pursuant to this chapter.  
10 A person may request that personalized prestige license plates  
11 issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 be combined with license plates  
12 for the support of rodeos if that person pays the fees for the  
13 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
14 license plates for the support of rodeos pursuant to subsections 3  
15 and 4.

16 3. The fee for license plates for the support of rodeos is \$35, in  
17 addition to all other applicable registration and license fees and  
18 governmental services taxes. The license plates are renewable upon  
19 the payment of \$10.

20 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
21 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
22 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
23 support of rodeos must pay for the initial issuance of the plates an  
24 additional fee of \$25 and for each renewal of the plates an additional  
25 fee of \$20, to be distributed pursuant to subsection 5.

26 5. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.38279, the  
27 Department shall deposit the fees collected pursuant to subsection 4  
28 with the State Treasurer for credit to the State General Fund. The  
29 State Treasurer shall, on a quarterly basis, distribute the fees  
30 deposited pursuant to this subsection in the following manner:

31 (a) Remit one-half of the fees to the Reno Rodeo Foundation or  
32 its successor for the support of programs and charitable activities of  
33 the Reno Rodeo Foundation or its successor.

34 (b) Remit one-half of the fees to the Nevada High School Rodeo  
35 Association or its successor for the support of programs and  
36 charitable activities of the Nevada High School Rodeo Association  
37 or its successor.

38 ↪ The Nevada High School Rodeo Association or its successor may  
39 grant a portion of the proceeds it receives pursuant to this subsection  
40 to one or more high school rodeo associations established in this  
41 State for the support of those associations.

42 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
43 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
44 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
2 the requirements of this section if the transfer and registration fees  
3 are paid as set forth in this chapter; or

4 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
5 return them to the Department.

6 **Sec. 32.** NRS 482.37945 is hereby amended to read as  
7 follows:

8 482.37945 1. Except as otherwise provided in this  
9 subsection, the Department, in cooperation with the Northern  
10 Nevada Railway Foundation or its successor, shall design, prepare  
11 and issue license plates for the support of the reconstruction,  
12 maintenance, improvement and promotion of the Virginia &  
13 Truckee Railroad using any colors that the Department deems  
14 appropriate. The design of the license plates must include a  
15 depiction of a locomotive of the Virginia & Truckee Railroad and  
16 the phrase "The Virginia & Truckee Lives." The Department shall  
17 not design, prepare or issue the license plates unless it receives at  
18 least 250 applications for the issuance of those plates.

19 2. If the Department receives at least 250 applications for the  
20 issuance of license plates for the support of the reconstruction,  
21 maintenance, improvement and promotion of the Virginia &  
22 Truckee Railroad, the Department shall issue those plates for a  
23 passenger car or light commercial vehicle upon application by a  
24 person who is entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265  
25 and who otherwise complies with the requirements for registration  
26 and licensing pursuant to this chapter. A person may request that  
27 personalized prestige license plates issued pursuant to NRS  
28 482.3667 be combined with license plates for the support of the  
29 reconstruction, maintenance, improvement and promotion of  
30 the Virginia & Truckee Railroad if that person pays the fees for the  
31 personalized prestige license plates in addition to the fees for the  
32 license plates for the support of the reconstruction, maintenance,  
33 improvement and promotion of the Virginia & Truckee Railroad  
34 pursuant to subsections 3 and 4.

35 3. The fee for license plates for the support of the  
36 reconstruction, maintenance, improvement and promotion of the  
37 Virginia & Truckee Railroad is \$35, in addition to all other  
38 applicable registration and license fees and governmental services  
39 taxes. The license plates are renewable upon the payment of \$10.

40 4. In addition to all other applicable registration and license  
41 fees and governmental services taxes and the fee prescribed in  
42 subsection 3, a person who requests a set of license plates for the  
43 support of the reconstruction, maintenance, improvement and  
44 promotion of the Virginia & Truckee Railroad must pay for the  
45 initial issuance of the plates an additional fee of \$25 and for each



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*



1 renewal of the plates an additional fee of \$20, to be distributed  
2 pursuant to subsection 5.

3 5. The Department shall transmit the fees collected pursuant to  
4 subsection 4 to the treasurer with whom the Nevada Commission for  
5 the Reconstruction of the V & T Railway of Carson City and  
6 Douglas, Lyon, Storey and Washoe Counties has entered into an  
7 agreement as required by subsection 2 of section 8 of chapter 566,  
8 Statutes of Nevada 1993, for deposit in the fund created pursuant to  
9 that section. The fees transmitted pursuant to this subsection must be  
10 used only for the reconstruction, maintenance, improvement and  
11 promotion of the Virginia & Truckee Railroad.

12 6. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of license  
13 plates issued pursuant to the provisions of this section disposes of  
14 the vehicle to which the plates are affixed, the holder shall:

15 (a) Retain the plates and affix them to another vehicle that meets  
16 the requirements of this section if the holder pays the fee for the  
17 transfer of the registration and any registration fee or governmental  
18 services tax due pursuant to NRS 482.399; or

19 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
20 return them to the Department.

21 **Sec. 33.** NRS 482.3812 is hereby amended to read as follows:

22 482.3812 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.2655,  
23 the Department may issue special license plates and registration  
24 certificates to residents of Nevada for any passenger car or light  
25 commercial vehicle:

26 (a) Having a manufacturer's rated carrying capacity of 1 ton or  
27 less; and

28 (b) Manufactured not later than 1948.

29 2. License plates issued pursuant to this section must be  
30 inscribed with the words "STREET ROD" and three or four  
31 consecutive numbers.

32 3. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of special  
33 plates issued pursuant to this section disposes of the vehicle to  
34 which the plates are affixed, the holder shall retain the plates and:

35 (a) Affix them to another vehicle which meets the requirements  
36 of this section and report the change to the Department in  
37 accordance with the procedure set forth for other transfers; or

38 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
39 return them to the Department.

40 4. The fee for the special license plates is \$35, in addition to all  
41 other applicable registration and license fees and governmental  
42 services taxes. The fee for an annual renewal sticker is \$10.

43 5. In addition to the fees required pursuant to subsection 4, the  
44 Department shall charge and collect a fee for the first issuance of the  
45 special license plates for those motor vehicles exempted pursuant to



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 NRS 445B.760 from the provisions of NRS 445B.770 to 445B.815,  
2 inclusive. The amount of the fee must be equal to the amount of the  
3 fee for a form certifying emission control compliance set forth in  
4 paragraph (c) of subsection 1 of NRS 445B.830.

5 6. Fees paid to the Department pursuant to subsection 5 must  
6 be accounted for in the Pollution Control Account created by  
7 NRS 445B.830.

8 **Sec. 34.** NRS 482.3816 is hereby amended to read as follows:

9 482.3816 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 482.2655,  
10 the Department may issue special license plates and registration  
11 certificates to residents of Nevada for any passenger car or light  
12 commercial vehicle:

13 (a) Having a manufacturer's rated carrying capacity of 1 ton or  
14 less;

15 (b) Manufactured at least 25 years before the application is  
16 submitted to the Department; and

17 (c) Containing only the original parts which were used to  
18 manufacture the vehicle or replacement parts that duplicate those  
19 original parts.

20 2. License plates issued pursuant to this section must be  
21 inscribed with the words "CLASSIC VEHICLE" and three or four  
22 consecutive numbers.

23 3. If, during a registration ~~year,~~ *period*, the holder of special  
24 plates issued pursuant to this section disposes of the vehicle to  
25 which the plates are affixed, the holder shall retain the plates and:

26 (a) Affix them to another vehicle which meets the requirements  
27 of this section and report the change to the Department in  
28 accordance with the procedure set forth for other transfers; or

29 (b) Within 30 days after removing the plates from the vehicle,  
30 return them to the Department.

31 4. The fee for the special license plates is \$35, in addition to all  
32 other applicable registration and license fees and governmental  
33 services taxes. The fee for an annual renewal sticker is \$10.

34 5. In addition to the fees required pursuant to subsection 4, the  
35 Department shall charge and collect a fee for the first issuance of the  
36 special license plates for those motor vehicles exempted pursuant to  
37 NRS 445B.760 from the provisions of NRS 445B.770 to 445B.815,  
38 inclusive. The amount of the fee must be equal to the amount of the  
39 fee for a form certifying emission control compliance set forth in  
40 paragraph (c) of subsection 1 of NRS 445B.830.

41 6. Fees paid to the Department pursuant to subsection 5 must  
42 be accounted for in the Pollution Control Account created by  
43 NRS 445B.830.



1     **Sec. 34.1.** NRS 482.3824 is hereby amended to read as  
2 follows:

3     482.3824 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS  
4 482.38279, with respect to any special license plate that is issued  
5 pursuant to NRS 482.3667 to 482.3823, inclusive, and for which  
6 additional fees are imposed for the issuance of the special license  
7 plate to generate financial support for a charitable organization:

8     (a) The Director shall, at the request of the charitable  
9 organization that is benefited by the particular special license plate:

10     (1) Order the design and preparation of souvenir license  
11 plates, the design of which must be substantially similar to the  
12 particular special license plate; and

13     (2) Issue such souvenir license plates, for a fee established  
14 pursuant to NRS 482.3825, only to the charitable organization that  
15 is benefited by the particular special license plate. The charitable  
16 organization may resell such souvenir license plates at a price  
17 determined by the charitable organization.

18     (b) The Department may, except as otherwise provided in this  
19 paragraph and after the particular special license plate is approved  
20 for issuance, issue the special license plate for a trailer, motorcycle  
21 or other type of vehicle that is not a passenger car or light  
22 commercial vehicle, excluding vehicles required to be registered  
23 with the Department pursuant to NRS 706.801 to 706.861,  
24 inclusive, *and full trailers or semitrailers registered pursuant to*  
25 *subsection 3 of NRS 482.483*, upon application by a person who is  
26 entitled to license plates pursuant to NRS 482.265 or 482.272 and  
27 who otherwise complies with the requirements for registration and  
28 licensing pursuant to this chapter or chapter 486 of NRS. The  
29 Department may not issue a special license plate for such other  
30 types of vehicles if the Department determines that the design or  
31 manufacture of the plate for those other types of vehicles would not  
32 be feasible. In addition, if the Department incurs additional costs to  
33 manufacture a special license plate for such other types of vehicles,  
34 including, without limitation, costs associated with the purchase,  
35 manufacture or modification of dies or other equipment necessary to  
36 manufacture the special license plate for such other types of  
37 vehicles, those additional costs must be paid from private sources  
38 without any expense to the State of Nevada.

39     2. If, as authorized pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1,  
40 the Department issues a special license plate for a trailer, motorcycle  
41 or other type of vehicle that is not a passenger car or light  
42 commercial vehicle, the Department shall charge and collect for the  
43 issuance and renewal of such a plate the same fees that the  
44 Department would charge and collect if the other type of vehicle  
45 was a passenger car or light commercial vehicle. As used in this



1 subsection, "fees" does not include any applicable registration or  
2 license fees or governmental services taxes.

3 3. As used in this section:

4 (a) "Additional fees" has the meaning ascribed to it in  
5 NRS 482.38273.

6 (b) "Charitable organization" means a particular cause, charity  
7 or other entity that receives money from the imposition of additional  
8 fees in connection with the issuance of a special license plate  
9 pursuant to NRS 482.3667 to 482.3823, inclusive. The term  
10 includes the successor, if any, of a charitable organization.

11 **Sec. 34.2.** NRS 482.399 is hereby amended to read as follows:

12 482.399 1. Upon the transfer of the ownership of or interest  
13 in any vehicle by any holder of a valid registration, or upon  
14 destruction of the vehicle, the registration expires.

15 2. ~~The~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3 of NRS*  
16 *482.483, the* holder of the original registration may transfer the  
17 registration to another vehicle to be registered by the holder and use  
18 the same regular license plate or plates or special license plate or  
19 plates issued pursuant to NRS 482.3667 to 482.3823, inclusive, or  
20 482.384, on the vehicle from which the registration is being  
21 transferred, if the license plate or plates are appropriate for the  
22 second vehicle, upon filing an application for transfer of registration  
23 and upon paying the transfer registration fee and the excess, if any,  
24 of the registration fee and governmental services tax on the vehicle  
25 to which the registration is transferred over the total registration fee  
26 and governmental services tax paid on all vehicles from which he or  
27 she is transferring ownership or interest. Except as otherwise  
28 provided in NRS 482.294, an application for transfer of registration  
29 must be made in person, if practicable, to any office or agent of the  
30 Department or to a registered dealer, and the license plate or plates  
31 may not be used upon a second vehicle until registration of that  
32 vehicle is complete.

33 3. In computing the governmental services tax, the  
34 Department, its agent or the registered dealer shall credit the portion  
35 of the tax paid on the first vehicle attributable to the remainder of  
36 the current registration period or calendar year on a pro rata monthly  
37 basis against the tax due on the second vehicle or on any other  
38 vehicle of which the person is the registered owner. If any person  
39 transfers ownership or interest in two or more vehicles, the  
40 Department or the registered dealer shall credit the portion of the tax  
41 paid on all of the vehicles attributable to the remainder of the  
42 current registration period or calendar year on a pro rata monthly  
43 basis against the tax due on the vehicle to which the registration is  
44 transferred or on any other vehicle of which the person is the  
45 registered owner. The certificates of registration and unused license



\* A B 3 3 6 R 2 \*

1 plates of the vehicles from which a person transfers ownership or  
2 interest must be submitted before credit is given against the tax due  
3 on the vehicle to which the registration is transferred or on any other  
4 vehicle of which the person is the registered owner.

5 4. In computing the registration fee, the Department or its  
6 agent or the registered dealer shall credit the portion of the  
7 registration fee paid on each vehicle attributable to the remainder of  
8 the current calendar year or registration period on a pro rata basis  
9 against the registration fee due on the vehicle to which registration  
10 is transferred.

11 5. If the amount owed on the registration fee or governmental  
12 services tax on the vehicle to which registration is transferred is less  
13 than the credit on the total registration fee or governmental services  
14 tax paid on all vehicles from which a person transfers ownership or  
15 interest, no refund may be allowed by the Department.

16 6. If the license plate or plates are not appropriate for the  
17 second vehicle, the plate or plates must be surrendered to the  
18 Department or registered dealer and an appropriate plate or plates  
19 must be issued by the Department. The Department shall not reissue  
20 the surrendered plate or plates until the next succeeding licensing  
21 period.

22 7. If application for transfer of registration is not made within  
23 60 days after the destruction or transfer of ownership of or interest  
24 in any vehicle, the license plate or plates must be surrendered to the  
25 Department on or before the 60th day for cancellation of the  
26 registration.

27 8. ~~HF~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2 of NRS*  
28 *371.040 and subsection 7 of NRS 482.260, if* a person cancels his  
29 or her registration and surrenders to the Department the license  
30 plates for a vehicle, the Department shall, in accordance with the  
31 provisions of subsection 9, issue to the person a refund of the  
32 portion of the registration fee and governmental services tax paid on  
33 the vehicle attributable to the remainder of the current calendar year  
34 or registration period on a pro rata basis.

35 9. The Department shall issue a refund pursuant to subsection 8  
36 only if the request for a refund is made at the time the registration is  
37 cancelled and the license plates are surrendered, the person  
38 requesting the refund is a resident of Nevada, the amount eligible  
39 for refund exceeds \$100, and evidence satisfactory to the  
40 Department is submitted that reasonably proves the existence of  
41 extenuating circumstances. For the purposes of this subsection, the  
42 term "extenuating circumstances" means circumstances wherein:

43 (a) The person has recently relinquished his or her driver's  
44 license and has sold or otherwise disposed of his or her vehicle.



1 (b) The vehicle has been determined to be inoperable and the  
2 person does not transfer the registration to a different vehicle.

3 (c) The owner of the vehicle is seriously ill or has died and the  
4 guardians or survivors have sold or otherwise disposed of the  
5 vehicle.

6 (d) Any other event occurs which the Department, by regulation,  
7 has defined to constitute an "extenuating circumstance" for the  
8 purposes of this subsection.

9 **Sec. 34.5.** NRS 482.483 is hereby amended to read as follows:

10 482.483 In addition to any other applicable fee listed in NRS  
11 482.480, there must be paid to the Department:

12 1. ~~For~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, for*  
13 every trailer or semitrailer having an unladen weight of 1,000  
14 pounds or less, a flat registration fee of \$12.

15 2. ~~For~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 3, for*  
16 every trailer having an unladen weight of more than 1,000 pounds, a  
17 flat registration fee of \$24.

18 3. *For any full trailer or semitrailer, other than a recreational*  
19 *vehicle or travel trailer, for a nontransferable registration that*  
20 *does not expire until the owner transfers the ownership of the full*  
21 *trailer or semitrailer, a flat nonrefundable registration fee of \$24.*  
22 *If, pursuant to NRS 482.399, the owner of a full trailer or*  
23 *semitrailer that is registered pursuant to this section cancels the*  
24 *registration and surrenders the license plates to the Department,*  
25 *no portion of the flat registration fee will be refunded to the*  
26 *owner.*

27 **Sec. 35.** NRS 482.520 is hereby amended to read as follows:

28 482.520 Whenever the owner of any motor vehicle, trailer or  
29 semitrailer which is stolen or embezzled files an affidavit alleging  
30 such fact with the Department, it shall immediately suspend the  
31 registration of and refuse to reregister such vehicle until such time  
32 as it is notified that the owner has recovered the vehicle, but notices  
33 given as herein provided shall be effective only during the current  
34 registration ~~year~~ *period* in which given. If during such ~~year~~  
35 *period* the vehicle is not recovered a new affidavit may be filed with  
36 like effect during the ensuing ~~year~~ *period*. Every owner who has  
37 filed an affidavit of theft or embezzlement must immediately notify  
38 the Department of the recovery of such vehicle.

39 **Sec. 36.** NRS 371.040 is hereby amended to read as follows:

40 371.040 ~~The~~

41 1. *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, the* annual  
42 amount of the basic governmental services tax throughout the State  
43 is 4 cents on each \$1 of valuation of the vehicle as determined by  
44 the Department.



1 **2. A full trailer or semitrailer registered pursuant to**  
2 **subsection 3 of NRS 482.483 is subject to the basic governmental**  
3 **services tax in the nonrefundable amount of \$86 each time such a**  
4 **full trailer or semitrailer is registered pursuant to subsection 3 of**  
5 **NRS 482.483.**

6 **Sec. 37.** NRS 371.060 is hereby amended to read as follows:  
7 371.060 1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2 ~~H~~  
8 **and subsection 2 of NRS 371.040**, each vehicle must be depreciated  
9 by the Department for the purposes of the annual governmental  
10 services tax according to the following schedule:

Age	Percentage of Initial Value
New .....	100 percent
1 year .....	95 percent
2 years.....	85 percent
3 years.....	75 percent
4 years.....	65 percent
5 years.....	55 percent
6 years.....	45 percent
7 years.....	35 percent
8 years.....	25 percent
9 years or more .....	15 percent

25 **2. ~~Each~~ Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2 of**  
26 **NRS 371.040, each** bus, truck or truck-tractor having a declared  
27 gross weight of 10,000 pounds or more and each trailer or  
28 semitrailer having an unladen weight of 4,000 pounds or more must  
29 be depreciated by the Department for the purposes of the annual  
30 governmental services tax according to the following schedule:

Age	Percentage of Initial Value
New .....	100 percent
1 year .....	85 percent
2 years.....	69 percent
3 years.....	57 percent
4 years.....	47 percent
5 years.....	38 percent
6 years.....	33 percent
7 years.....	30 percent
8 years.....	27 percent
9 years.....	25 percent
10 years or more .....	23 percent



1 3. Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, the  
2 minimum amount of the governmental services tax:

3 (a) On any trailer having an unladen weight of 1,000 pounds or  
4 less is \$3; and

5 (b) On any other vehicle is \$16.

6 4. For the purposes of this section, a vehicle shall be deemed a  
7 "new" vehicle if the vehicle has never been registered with the  
8 Department and has never been registered with the appropriate  
9 agency of any other state, the District of Columbia, any territory or  
10 possession of the United States or any foreign state, province or  
11 country.

12 **Sec. 38.** NRS 371.070 is hereby amended to read as follows:

13 371.070 ~~Upon~~ *Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2*  
14 *of NRS 371.040, upon* the registration for the first time in this State  
15 after the beginning of the period of registration of a vehicle which is  
16 registered pursuant to the provisions of NRS 706.801 to 706.861,  
17 inclusive, or which has a declared gross weight in excess of 26,000  
18 pounds, the amount of the governmental services tax must be  
19 reduced one-twelfth for each month which has elapsed since the  
20 beginning of the period of registration.

21 **Sec. 39.** This act becomes effective on January 1, 2015.

